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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

December 27, 2005

Dear Stockholder:

As anticipated and discussed in my 2004 letter, we were able to turn around operating results with net income of
$113,000 for this fiscal year compared to an operating loss of $13,000 in fiscal year 2004. We have now
achieved five consecutive quarters of improved earnings compared to the same quarters in the previous year.
This past year had a number of positives. Total assets increased 6.6% to $94,895,000 at September 30, 2005.
Loans increased 15.5% and demand deposit accounts increased 11.4% contributing to an increase of $106,000,
or 3.9%, in net interest income from fiscal year 2004 to fiscal year 2005. Noninterest income increased $131,000,
or 49.7%, during the same period. We continue to strive to improve our operating efficiency in light of continued
growth. We have stabilized operating expenses over the past fiscal year, while growing our balance sheet and
adding new product lines. We continue {o have very few credit problems in our loan portfolio and have minimized
our interest-rate-risk exposure. Tangible book value per share increased from $14.98 per share at September 30,
2004, to $15.35 per share at September 30, 2005.

As we look forward, we realize that we must continue to enhance shareholder value. Although earnings
improved, we know that the return to stockholders is not adequate and, for most of the fiscal year, common stock
traded below book value. Qur goal is to improve earnings through prudent growth, thereby leveraging our capital
position and increasing operating efficiency. We will continue to look at stock repurchases from time-to-time to
improve shareholder value.

There are a number of challenges we face. Recent moves by the Federal Reserve have fiattened the yield curve
and have tightened spreads between interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities. We continue to be
confronted with increased competition in the market areas that we serve and overall within the metropolitan area.
As | wrote last year, we have purchased a branch site 5 miles west of Liberty in hopes of capitalizing on the
rapidly growing area. Due to the lack of deposit growth, we have stepped up our timetable for completion of the
branch and anticipate an opening in the second quarter of the 2006 fiscal year. This expansion, of course, will
have an immediate negative impact on our earnings in the short term until such time we have developed our
newly expanded customer base. However, we feel expansion into rapidly developing areas is the primary way to
improve our deposit base so we can continue to support more growth in the long term.

The Board, management, and employees continue to invest in CCSB Financial Corp. with their time, efforts and
dollars. We remain confident that our strategies will enhance stockholder value.

Sincerely,

YRS ’ "
ALY
-
7

Chairman, President & CEO
CCSB Financial Corp.
President & CEO

Clay County Savings Bank

CCSB Financial Corp.



CORPORATE PROFILE
AND GENERAL
INFORMATION

CCSB Financial Corp.

CCsB Financial Corp. (the
“Company”), a Delaware corporation,
was incorporated in September 2002
to facilitate the conversion of Clay
County Savings and Loan Association

from a mutual savings associationto a

stock savings bank (the “Conversion”).
The Company does not engage in any
significant business other than serving
as the holding company for Clay
County Savings Bank (the “Bank”)
following the conversion. The
Company’s assets consist of the
Company's investment in the Bank,
deposits in the Bank, a participation in
a loan with the Bank, and the
Company's loan to the employee
stock ownership plan of the Bank. The
Company's executive office is located
at 1178 West Kansas, Liberty,
Missouri 64068.

Clay County Savings Bank

The Bank is a community-oriented
financial institution offering selected
financial services to meet the needs of
the communities it serves. Although
established primarily to meet the
home financing needs of the public,
the Bank is now a full-service financial
institution that serves the expanded
credit needs of residents and
businesses in its market area. The
Bank currently offers a variety of
deposit accounts, including personal
and business checking accounts,
passbook and statement savings
accounts, flexible-term certificates of
deposit, and individual retirement
accounts. The Bank’s lending activity
consists of permanent and
construction single-family real estate
loan financing, loans secured by muiti-
family and nonresidential real estate,
home equity and other consumer
lending, and commercial non-real
estate financing.

The Bank was founded in March 1922
and operated under the name Clay
County Building and Loan Association

until February 1967, at which time the
Bank was renamed Clay County
Savings and Loan Association.
Originally & state chartered savings
and loan association, the Bank
converted to a federal charter in 1995.
As part of the conversion from mutual
to stock ownership, the Bank
converted to a federally chartered
savings bank and changed its name
to Clay County Savings Bank. The
Bank conducts its business through
four offices in Clay County, Missouri,
including the main office in Liberty,
Missouri, and branch offices in Liberty,
Kearney, and Smithvile, Missouri.
The Bank's deposit accounts are
insured up to a maximum of $100,000
by the Savings Association Insurance
Fund (SAIF), which is administered by
the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation {FDIC).

COMMON STOCK PRICES
AND DIVIDEND
INFORMATION

The common stock of the Company is
quoted on the over-the-counter
Electronic Bulletin Board under the
symbol “CCFC". On January 8, 2003,
upon the consummation of the
Conversion, the Company issued
978,650 shares of common stock at
$10 per share, inclusive of 78,292
shares issued to the Bank's employee
stock ownership plan. On January 8,
2003, the stock opened at $11.85 per
share and, as of the close on
December 9, 2005, the latest sales
price known to the Company was
$14.75 per share,

During fiscal year 2005, the Company
repurchased 50,000 shares of
common stock, .which were held as
treasury stock. In addition, 650
shares of common stock held in the
treasury account were transferred to
the Company’s 2004 Recognition and
Retention Plan (RRP) account, while
475 shares of commen stock
previously awarded under the RRP
had been forfeited and returned to the
treasury account. At December 8,
2005, there were a total of 916,945
shares of common stock outstanding.

The Company has not paid dividends
to date and the Board of Directors has
not announced any immediate plans
to pay dividends, although it may do
s0 in the future subject to regulatory
requirements and the Company’s
financial condition and results of
operations {See Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Table 1 below reflects the range of
common stock closing prices by
quarter over the past two fiscal years.
Prices are inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark-up, mark-down or

commissions, and may not
necessarily represent actual
transactions. As of December 9,

2005, there were 258 holders of
record of the Company's common
stock.  This does not reflect the
number of persons or entities who
hold stock in nominee or “street
name.”

TABLE 1

Fiscal
2005 2004

Quarter Ended:

Low High Low

September 30 $1550 $14.50 | $14.00 $13.10
June 30 15.40 14.35 15.40 12.70
March 31 16.30 14.50 16.18 15.40

December 31

15.75 1370 | 1575 13.85

CCSB Financial Corp.



SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

The following tables (Table 2 and 3}
set forth selected consolidated
financial information and data of the
Company at and for the periods

30, 2002 and 2001 have been derived
from the audited financial statements
of the Bank.

" Bank in January 2003. The following
information is only a summary, and
should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and

indicated. The selected data as of The Company had no assets or notes presented elsewhere in the
and for the years ended September liabilities prior to its acquisition of the Annual Report.
TABLE 2 At September 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
{In Thousands)
Selected Consolidated Financial Condition Data:
Total assets $ 94,895 $ 89,029 § 85471 $ 77,923 §$ 77648
Loans receivable, net 68,726 58,513 51,898 49,903 59,277
Available-for-sale securities 13,795 18,076 20,895 10,355 8,383
Held-to-maturity securities - - - 15 16
Deposits 65,035 65,335 64,225 64,463 58,077
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 14,378 8,206 5,141 5,877 11,928
Total stockholders' equity 13,848 14,378 15,042 6,553 6,465
Year Ended September 30,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Selected Consolidated Operations Data:
Total interest and dividend income $ 4387 $ 3749 $ 3888 $§ 4647 § 5566
Total interest expense (1,558) (1,026) (1,462) (2,378) (3,634)
Net interest income 2,829 2,723 2,526 2,268 1,932
Provision for loan losses (60) (55) (48) (18) 21)
Net interest income after provisicn for loan losses 2,769 2,668 2,478 2,253 1,811
Fees and service charges 305 288 283 207 149
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights (66) (96) (123) (55) (20)
Net gain on the sale of securities - 13 - - 3
Net gain on the sale of premises - - - - 69
Net gain on the sale of loans 28 16 234 127 40
Increase in cash surrender value of 110 28 - - -
bank owned life insurance
Other noninterest income 17 14 18 17 15
Total noninterest income 394 263 412 296 256
Total noninterest expense (3,044) (2,972) (2,645) (2,378) (2,337}
Income (loss) before inccme taxes 118 (41) 245 171 (170)
Income taxes (8) 28 (88) (58) 58
Net income (loss) $ 113 § (13) & 157 § 113 § (112)
Basic earnings (loss) per share (1) $ 013 § (001 % 0.15 N/A N/A
Diiuted earnings (loss) per share (1) 3 .13 $ (001 § 0.15 N/A N/A
Dividends per share N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Basic and diluted earnings per share are based upon the weighted-average shares outstanding. During the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2003, this included only the period of January 8, 2003, to September 30, 2003, and earnings for the quarter ended

December 31, 2002, are not included.

CCSB Financial Corp.



OTHER SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

TABLE 3

Operating Ratios:
Return on average assets
Net yield on average interest-earning assets (1)
Net interest rate spread for year
Average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest expense to average assets
Efficiency ratio (2)

Equity Ratios:

Return on average equity
Average equity to average assets
Long-term borrowings to equity
Tier 1 leverage ratio

Tier 1 risk-based ratio

Total risk-based capital ratio

Asset Quality Ratios:

Net charge-offs (recaveries) to average
nonperforming assets

Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average
loans outstanding during the period

Allowance for loan losses to gross loans receivable

Nonperforming loans to total assets

Nonperforming assets to total assets

Other Data:
Number of full-service offices

At or For the Years Ended September 30,

(1) Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.

2005 2004 2003 2002
0.12 % {0.02) % 0.18 % 0.15 %
3.41 3.52 3.30 3.09
3.29 3.38 3.13 3.00

106.15 110.02 109.17 102.85
3.26 3.46 3.17 3.06

96.23 101.42 80.03 92.73
0.78 % (0.08) % 1.26 % 1.74 %
15.30 17.03 14,97 8.37
85.15 43.16 13.89 56.20
12.01 12.21 12.37 8.33
17.88 20.25 23.68 16.25
18.41 20.81 24.24 16.77
- % 12.42 % 16.21 % (0.28) %
- 0.01 0.01 -
0.48 0.47 0.43 0.41
- 0.12 0.01 0.06
- 0.12 0.0t 0.06
4 4 4 4

(2) Noninterest expense divided by net interest income, after provision for loan losses, and noninterest income.

2001

(0.14) %
2.64
2.56

101.53

3.01
106.77

(1.73) %
8.31
90.90
8.21
14.63
15.07

1.62% %

0.01

0.31

0.17

CCSB Financial Corp.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OR PLAN OF OPERATION

Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements in this annual
report that relate to the Company’s
plans, objectives or future
performance may be deemed to be
forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Private  Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1985. These
statements are based on the beliefs of
management as well as the
assumptions made using information
currently available to management.
Since these statements reflect the
views of management concerning

future events, these statements
involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. These risks and

uncertainties include, among others:

+ the impact of changes in market

interest rates and general
economic conditions,

» changes in government
regulations,

* changes in accounting principles,
and

« the guality or composition of the
loan and investment portfolio.

Therefore, actual future results may
differ significantly from results in the
forward-looking statements due to a
number of factors, which include, but
are not limited to, factors discussed in
the documents filed by the Company
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) from time to time.
Additional  discussion of factors
affecting the Company's business and
prospects is contained in periodic
filings with the SEC.

General

The Company's results of operations
depend primarily on its wholly-owned
subsidiary bank, which is the
Company’'s primary investment. The
Bank's results of operations depend
primarily on its net interest income.
Net interest income is the difference
between the interest income eamed
on interest-earning assets, censisting
primarily of loans, morigage-backed
securities, investment securities and
other interest-earning deposits, and
the interest paid on interest-bearing
liabilities, consisting

deposit accounts and Federal Home
Loan Bank (FHLB) advances. The
Bank's results of operations are also
affected by provision for loan losses,
noninterest income and noninterest
expense. Noninterest  income
consists primarily of fees and service
charges, gains on the sale of assets
and increase in cash surrender value
of life insurance. Noninterest expense
consists primarily of salaries and

employee benefits, occupancy,
equipment, data processing and
deposit insurance premiums,

advertising, and other operating
expenses. The Bank's results of
operations also may be affected
significantly by general and local
economic and competitive conditions,
changes in market interest rates,
governmental policies and actions of
regulatory authorities.

In September 2002, the Company was
incorporated  to facilitate the
conversion of Clay County Savings
and Loan Association from a mutual
savings association to a stock savings
bank (“the Conversion'’). As part of
the Conversion, Clay County Savings
and Loan Association changed its
name to Clay County Savings Bank.
In connection with the Conversion, the
Company offered its common stock to
the depositors and borrowers of the
Bank as of specified dates and to an
employee stock ownership plan. The
Conversion was consummated on
January 8, 2003, at which time the
Company became the hclding
company for the Bank and issued
shares of its stock to the general
public. All references to the Company
prior to the date of the Conversion,
except where otherwise indicated, are
to the Bank.

Critical Accounting Policies

primarily  of -

The Company has established various
accounting policies, which govemn the
application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United
States of America in the preparation of
its financial  statements. The
Company’s  significant  accounting
policies are described in the footnotes
to the Consolidated Financial

Statements. Certain accounting
policies involve significant judgments
and assumptions by management that
have a material impact on the carrying
value of certain assets and liabilities;
management considers such
accounting policies to be critical
accounting policies. The judgments
and assumptions used by
management are based on historical
experience and other factors, which
are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Because of the
nature of the judgments and
assumptions made by management,
actual results could differ from these
judgments and estimates that could
have a material impact on the carrying
values of assets and liabilities and the
results of operations of the Company.

The allowance for losses on loans
represents management'’s best
estimate of probable losses in the
existing loan portfolio. The aliowance
for losses on loans is increased by the
provision for losses on loans charged
to expense and reduced by loans
charged off, net of recoveries. The
provision for losses on loans is
determined based on management's
assessment of several factors:
reviews and evaluations of specific
loans, changes in the nature and
volume of the loan portfolio, current
economic conditions and the related
impact on specific borrowers and
industry groups, historical loan loss
experience, the level of classified and
nonperforming loans and the results of
regulatory examinations.

integral to the methodology for
determining the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses is portfolio

segmentation and impairment
measurement. Under the Company's
methodology, foans are  first

segmented intc 1) those comprising
large groups of smaller-balance
homogeneous loans, including single-
family real estate loans and
installment loans, that are collectively
evaluated for impairment and 2) all
other loans that are individually
evaluated. Those loans in the second
category are further segmented
utilizing a defined grading system
which involves categoerizing lcans by
severity of risk based on conditions

CCSB Financial Corp.



MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OR PLAN OF OPERATION

that may affect the ability of the
borrowers to repay their debt, such as
current financial information, collateral
valuations, historical payment
experience, credit documentation,
public information, and current trends.
The loans subject to  credit
classification represent the portion of
the portfolio subject to the greatest
credit risk and where adjustments to
the aliowance for losses on loans as a
result of provisions and charge-offs
are most likely to have a significant
impact on operations.

A periodic review of selected credits
(based on loan size and type) is
conducted to identify loans with
heightened risk or probable losses
and to assign risk grades. The primary
responsibility for this review rests with
the internal auditor/compliance officer.
This review is supplemented with
periodic examination of both selected
credits and the credit review process
by the applicable regulatory agencies
and external auditers. The information
from these reviews assists
management in the timely
identification of problems and potential
problems and provides a basis for
deciding whether the credit represents
a probable loss or risk that should be
recognized.

Lcans are considered
based on current information and
events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or
interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan
agreement. The measurement of
impaired loans is generally based on
the fair value of the collateral for
collateral-dependent loans. If the loan
is not collateral-dependent, the
measurement of impairment is based
on the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the
historical effective interest rate or the
observable market price of the loan. In
measuring the fair value of the
collateral, management uses the
assumptions (e.g., discount rates) and
methodoiogies (e.g., comparison to
the recent seling price of similar
assets) consistent with those that
would be utilized by unrelated third
parties. impairment identified through

this evaluation process is a
component of the allowance for loan
losses. If a loan that is individually
evaluated for impairment is found io
have none, it is grouped together with
loans having similar characteristics
(e.g., the same risk grade), and an
allowance for loan losses is based
upon historical average charge-offs for
similar loans over the past five years,
the historical average charge-off rate
for developing trends in the economy,
in industries and other factors. For
portfolio loans that are evaluated for
impairment as part of homogenous
pools, an allowance is maintained
based upon the average charge-offs
for the past five years.

Changes in the financial condition of
individual borrowers, in economic
conditions, in historical loss
experience and in the conditions of
the various markets in which collaterai
may be sold may all affect the
required level of the allowance for
losses on loans and the asscciated
provision for losses on loans.

Changes in Financial Condition

impaired if, -

Total assets increased $5.9 million, or
6.6%, from $89.0 million at September
30, 2004, to $94.9 million at
September 30, 2005. The growth was
due to the increase in loans, which
was funded from available liquidity
and advances from the Federal Home
Loan Bank.

Loans - Net loans receivable
increased $9.2 million, or 15.5%, from
$59.5 million at September 30, 2004,
to $68.7 milion at September 30,
2005. This follows an increase of $7.5
million, or 14.5%, from September 30,
2003, to September 30, 2004. The
growth in fiscal year 2005 was
primarily in construction, land and land
development loans, which increased
$9.9 million, or 79.9%, from $12.4
million at September 30, 2004, to
$22.2 million at September 30, 2005.
The growth in construction, land and
land development loans is in large
part due to the Bank’s financing of a
single-family land development project

and construction loans
builders within that project.

to various

in addition to the growth in
construction, land and land
development loans, increases were
experienced in  commercial real

estate, multi-family and consumer
loans. The growth in these types of
loans was partially offset by a

decrease in single-family real estate
loans and commercial non-real estate
loans. Commercial real estate loans
increased $1.8 million, or 22.7%, from
$8.0 million at September 30, 2004, to
$9.8 million at September 30, 2005.
Multi-family loans doubled from $1.1
million at September 30, 2004, to $2.2

million at September 30, 2005.
Consumer loans (including loans
secured Dby deposits) increased

$103,000, or 1.5%, from $6.7 million
at September 30, 2004, to $6.8 million
at September 30, 2005. In contrast,
single-family  real estate loans
decreased $1.6 million, or 5.0%, from
$34.4 million at September 30, 2004,
to $32.8 million at September 30,
2005, and commercial non-real estate
loans decreased from $1.4 million at
September 30, 2004, to $1.3 million at
September 30, 2005,

The change in the loan portfolio mix is
attributed to the focus on increasing
shorter-term or adjustable-rate
nonresidential real estate loans,
construction, land and land
development loans, and consumer
loans, which are also generally higher-
yielding assets than the traditional
single-family, real estate loans. The
Bank also continued its strategy to
primarily sell long-term, fixed-rate
single-family real estate loans in the
secondary market.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash
and cash equivalents decreased
$234,000, or 6.5%, at September 30,
2005, from September 30, 2004, The
decrease is attributed to the
outstanding balance in correspondent
banks at year end. Federal funds sold
increased from $582,000 at
September 30, 2004, to $1.1 million at
September 30, 2005, but the average
for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2005, was $525,000 compared to

CCSB Financial Corp.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OR PLAN OF OPERATION

$1.5 millien for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004.

Available-for-sale  Securities -
During fiscal year 2005, there was
also a shift from investments to loans
in an effort to run off excess and
lower-yielding liquid assets.
Available-for-sale securities
decreased $4.3 million, or 23.7%,
from $18.1 million at September 30,
2004, to $13.8 million at September
30, 2005. The decrease was primarily
due’ to principal repayments of
mortgage-backed securities (MBS)
and the lack of new investment
activity.  The investment in MBS
decreased $4.1 million, or 3C.0%,
from $13.9 miilion at September 30,
2004, to $9.8 million at September 30,
2005. Overall, available-for-sale
securities decreased from 20.3% of
total assets at September 30, 2004, to
14.5% of total assets at September
30, 2005.

Premises and Equipment -
Premises and equipment increased
$771,000 from $4.1 million at
September 30, 2004, to $4.9 million at
September 30, 2005, primarily due to
the purchase of land and the initial
construction .costs for a new branch
facitity. The purchase of land was
completed in December 2004,
Anticipated completion of the new
branch office is expected by March
2006. Overall costs, including land
acquisition costs, are expected to
approximate $2 million,

Other Assets - Other assets,
including bank owned life insurance,
increased $190,000, or 6.1%, from
$3.1 million at September 30, 2004, to
$3.3 million at September 30, 2005.

Deposits - Deposits decreased
$300,000, or 0.5%, from $65.3 millicn
at September 30, 2004, to $65.0
million at September 30, 2005. The
Bank has been focusing its funding
strategy on transactional accounts as
oppcsed to  higher-costing and
traditionally more interest-rate
sensitive cerificates of deposit. This
strategy is supperted by the growth in
noninterest bearing deposit accounts,
which was offset by a decrease in
savings, NOW and mcney market

accounts. Noninterest  bearing
demand deposits increased $493,000
from September 30, 2004, to
September 30, 2005, while savings,
NOW and money market accounts
decreased $1.6 million during the
same period. The larger decrease in
savings, NOW and money market
accounts was also partially offset by
an increase in time deposits of
$793,000, The increase in time
deposits has been in recent months
as market interest rates have
increased. From May 31, 2005 to
September 30, 2005, time deposits
have increased $2 million, or 6.3%.

Borrowings - Due to the lack of
deposit growth, loan growth was
primarily  funded through FHLB
advances. FHLB advances increased
$6.2 milion, or 75.6%, from $8.2
million at September 30, 2004, to
$14.4 million at September 30, 2005.
The advances were also utilized to
lengthen the maturities of interest-
bearing liabilities during the low
interest rate environment. At
September 30, 2005, outstanding
FHLB advances had a weighted
average vyield of 3.58% and a
weighted average remaining term to
maturity of 37 months.

Stockholders’ Equity — Stockholders’
equity decreased from $14.4 million,
or 16.1% of total assets, at September
30, 2004, to $13.9 million, or 14.7% of
total assets, at September 30, 2005,
primarily the result of the repurchase
of stock. The net change in treasury
stack for fiscal year 2005 was the
addition of 49,825 shares increasing
the amount of treasury stock from
$167,000 at September 30, 2004, to
$900,000 at September 30, 2005.
Combined with the amortization of the
Employee Stock Ownership Plan and
Recognition and Retention Plan,
tangible book - value per share
increased from $14.98 per share at
September 30, 2004, to $15.35 per
share at September 30, 2005.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Year Ended
September 30, 2005 and 2004

Summary - The Company realized
net income of $113,000, or $0.13 per
share, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005, compared to an
operating loss of $13,000 for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2004. The
improvement is atiributed to an
increase in net interest income and
naninterest income, while noninterest
expense has stabilized.

Net Interest Income - Net interest
income prior to the provision for loan
losses increased $106,000, or 3.9%,
for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2005, from the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004. The increase in .
net interest income can be attributed
to an increase in earning assets, the
increase in noninterest-bearing
deposit accounts, and the shift in the
earning asset mix from investments
toward loans. These factors offset a
decrease in net interest-earning
assets resulting from the purchase of
bank owned life insurance, which is
not considered an interest-earning
asset (See Noninterest Income). The
average outstanding balance of
interest-earning assets increased $5.5
million from $77.4 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2004, to
$82.9 million for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2005. However, the
average outstanding balance of
interest-bearing liabilities, excluding
noninterest-bearing demand deposit
accounts, increased $6.7 million for
the same period. As a result, average
net interest-earning assets decreased
from $7.1 million in fiscal year 2004 to
$4.8 million in fiscal year 2005.
Nevertheless, sufficient growth was
attained to increase net interest
income despite a decrease in the net
interest spread between interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. The net interest spread
decreased 9 basis points from 3.38%
for fiscal year 2004 to 3.29% for fiscal
year 2005,

Interest Income — Interest income
increased $637,000, or 17.0%, to $4.4
million for the fiscal year ended

CCSB Financiat Corp.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OR PLAN OF OPERATION

September 30, 2005, from $3.75
million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004. The weighted
average vyield on interest-earning
assets increased from 4.84% for fiscal
year 2004 to 5.29% for fiscal year
2005. Approximately one-half of the
45 basis point increase in yield can be
attributed to a general increase in
interest rates (See Table Under
Rate/Volume Analysis), however, the
remainder is due to the increase in
loan receivables and the change in
the mix of earning assets. '

Average loans receivable increased
$8.9 million from fiscal year 2004 to
fiscal year 2005 and comprised 78.0%
of earning assets for 2005 compared
to 73.0% of earning assets for 2004.
The weighted average yield on loans
receivable increased 19 basis points
from 5.69% for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, to 5.88% for the
fiscal year ended September 30,
2005. As a result, interest income on
loans receivable increased $633,000
during the period.

Interest expense - As would be
expected, the increase in interest
rates had a negative impact on
interest expense. Despite the
increase in noninterest-bearing
transaction accounts, interest expense
increased $532,000, or 51.9%, from
$1.0 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, to $1.6 million
for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2005. Interest expense on
deposits  increased $274,000, or
32.2%, for the fiscal year as compared
to the prior fiscal year and this was
almost entirely due to higher interest
rates (See Table Under Rate/Volume
Analysis). The weighted average cost
of deposits increased from 1.32% for
fiscal year 2004 to 1.73% despite an
increase in noninterest-bearing
deposits of $1 million during the
periods. In contrast, the increase in
interest expense on borrowings can
be primarily attributed to the increase
in FHLB advances. The average
balance in FHLB advances more than
doubled from $6.2 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2004, to
$12.9 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005. Accordingly,
interest expense on FHLB advances

increased from $178,000 for fiscal
year 2004 to $436,000 for fiscal year
2005. There was also an impact of
higher interest rates as the weighted
average cost of FHLB advances
increased from 2.85% to 3.34%
between the periods.

Provision for Loan Losses -
Provisions for ioan losses are charged
to operations in order to increase the
allowance for loan losses to a level
necessary 1o absorb management's
best estimate of probable loan losses
in the loan portfolio as of the balance
sheet date. Management considers,
among other factors, historical loss
experience, type and amount of loans
in the portfolio, adverse circumstances
that may affect the borrower's ability
to repay the loan, the estimated value
of underlying collateral, and current
economic conditions. This evaluation
is ongoing and inherently subjective,
as it requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revision as
new information becomes available or
circumstances change. Various
regulatery  agencies periodically
review the allowance for loan losses
and may require the Bank to record
additicnal provisions based on their
judgment of information available to
them at the time of examination.

The Bank recorded a provision for
loan losses of $60,000 in fiscal year
2005 compared to $55,000 in fiscal
year 2004. The increase in the
provision was due to the increase in
construction and land development
locans, commercial real estate loans
and consumer loans. Management
considers these loans to have a
higher inherent risk than permanent
one-to-four family real estate loans.
The provision increased the allowance
for loan losses to the amount
considered adequate by management
based on current econaomic
conditions, loan portfolio compgesition,
historical loss experience, and a
review of selected individual loans.

Noninterest Income - Noninterest
income increased $131,000, or
49.7%, from $263,000 in fiscal year
2004 to $394,000 in fiscal year 2005.
The increase was primarily due to the
recognition of income resulting from

the increase in the cash surrender
value of bank owned life insurance.
The Bank purchased the “key person”
life insurance policies in June and July
2004, so*the impact was not fully
realized in fiscal year 2004. The Bank
recognized income of $110,000 in
2005 compared to $28,000 in 2004.
There was an increase in the gain on
sale of loans but this was essentially
offset by the gain on the sale of
available-for-sale securities in 2004,
The Bank had no gain on the sale of
securities in 2005.

Other factors contributing to an
increase in noninterest income was a
decrease in the amortization of
mortgage servicing rights and higher
fees and charges on deposit
accounts. The amortization of
mortgage servicing rights decreased
$30,000 in fiscal year 2005 from fiscal
year 2004. The Bank recognizes a
gain on sale of loans in part due to the
value of servicing rights, which it
retains, at the time the loan is sold
and then the servicing rights are
amortized in proportion to, and over
the period of, estimated net servicing
income. Due to a slow down in loan
payoffs and the overall seasoning of
the portfolio, the amortization of
mortgage servicing rights was lower in
2005. Service charges and fees on
deposit accounts increased $26,000
in fiscal year 2005 from fiscal year
2004. This can be attributed to the
increase in demand deposit accounts.

Noninterest expense — Noninterest
expense increased $71,000, or 2.4%,
from fiscal year 2004 to fiscal year
2005 as the Company has
experienced some stabilization of
expenses over the past 7 quarterly
reporting periods. One of the primary
reasons for the increase in noninterest
expense from fiscal year 2004 to fiscal
year 2005 is the full vyears
amortization expense of the
Recognition and Retention Plan
approved in January 2004 by
stockholders (See Note 11 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements).
The RRP expense was $105,000 and
$125,000, respectively, for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2004 and
2005, respectively. Overall,
compensation and benefits expense

CCSB Financial Corp.
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increased $42,000, or 2.4%, in fiscal
year 2005 from fiscal year 2004.

The most significant increase was in
data processing expense, which
increased $29,000 or 18.0%, from
fiscal year 2004 to fiscal year 2005.
Part of the increase in data processing
expense is attributed to software
expense, which in previous years had
been included with occupancy and
equipment expense. The most
significant decrease was in advertising
expense, which decreased $17,000,
or 20.5%, from the prior fiscal year.

Management does not anticipate
noninterest expense to continue to
remain stable with the anticipated
opening of a new branch facility in
March 2008.

income Taxes. The Company
recorded a provision for income taxes
of $6,000 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005, based on
income before income taxes of
$119,000. The low tax provision is
due to the favorable tax impact of the
investment in  bank owned life
insurance (See Noninterest Income).
For the fiscal year 2004, the Company
recorded a tax benefit of $28,000 due
to a before tax operating loss of
$42,000.

Rate/Volume Analysis

Table 4 that follows reflects the dollar
amount of changes in interest income
and interest expense for major
components of interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities, It
distinguishes between the changes
related to outstanding balances and in
interest rates. For each category of
interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, information s
provided on changes attributable te {i}
changes in volume (i.e., changes in
volume multiplied by prior year’s rate);
(i) changes in rate (i.e., changes in
rate multiplied by prior year's volume);
and (jii) changes attributable tc both
rate and volume (i.e., changes in
volume multiplied by changes in rate).

TABLE 4 Year Ended September 30,
2005 vs. 2004
Increase (Decrease} Due To
Rate/
Volume Rate Volume Total

. (Dollars in Thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:

interest-bearing deposits in banks 3 (13) $ 106 $ (88) $ 5

Federal funds sold (5) 42 (28) 9

Available-for-sale securities (61) 48 (5) (20)

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 7 2 2 11

Loans receivable 508 108 17 633

TOTAL INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS $ 436 § 304 $ (102) $ 638

INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Demand 3 - 3 - $ - $ -

Savings, NOW and money market (1) 148 (2) 143

Time deposits 1 130 - 131

Federal funds purchased - - 6 6

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 189 31 32 252

TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES  § 189 § 307 % 36 ¢ 532

Change in net interest income $ 247 3) (138) 106

CCSB Financial Corp.
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Average Balances, Interest and
Average Yields and Rates

The following table (Table 5) presents,
for the years indicated, the total dollar
amount of interest income from
average interest-earning assets and
the resultant yields, as well as the
interest expense on average interest-
bearing liabilities, expressed both in
dollars and rates.

No tax equivalent adjustments were
made. Nen-accruing loans have been
included in the table as loans carrying
a zero yield. Interest-bearing liabilities
include noninterest-tbearing transaction
accounts. The interest vyield/rate on
interest-bearing deposits in banks is
impacted by the balance of uncollected
funds and timing differences.

Bank owned life insurance is not
included in interest earning assets;
thus, had a significant impact on net
earning assets. The purchase of the
bank owned life insurance occurred
during the last quarter of the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004.

TABLE 5 Year Ended September 30,
2005 2004
Average Interest Interest Average Interest Interest
outstanding earned/ yield/ outstanding earned/ _yield/
balance paid rate balance paid rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:
Interest-bearing deposits in banks (1) 8 110 § 20 18.18 % $§ 663 $ 15 2.26
Federal funds sold 525 17 3.24 1,538 8 0.52
Available-for-sale securities 16,048 478 288 18,276 498 2.72
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 732 19 2.60 402 8 1.99
Loans receivable (2) 65,478 3,853 5.88 56,553 3,220 5.69
TOTAL INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS $ 82,893 § 4387 529 % $ 77,432 §$ 3,749 4.84
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Demand (3) $ 4416 $ - - % 3 3379 $ - -
Savings, NOW and money market 28,513 317 1.11 28,758 174 0.61
Time deposits 32,020 805 2.51 31,994 674 2.1
Federal funds purchased 275 B 2.18 - - -
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 12,867 430 3.34 6,249 178 285
TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES $§ 78,081 § 1558 200 % $ 70,380 % 1,026 1.46
Net interest income $ 2,829 $ 2723
Net interest spread 3.29 % 3.38
Net earning assets $ 4,802 $ 7,052
Net yield on average interest-earning assets 341 % 3.52
Average interest-earning assets to 106.15% 110.02%
average interest-bearing liabilities
(1) Interest includes net earnings on checks issued, but still outstanding, at correspondent banks, while the amount
of the checks issued is deducted from the balance at correspondent banks at the time of issue.
(2} Includes Ioans held for sale and net of loans in process and deferred fees and credits.
(3) Includes NOW deposits carrying a zero yield.

%
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Asset/Liability Management

The Company, through its wholly-
owned supsidiary savings bank, has
an exposure to interest rate risk. The
Bank's principal financiai objective is
to achieve long-term profitability while
reducing its exposure to fluctuating
interest rates. The Bank has
employed various strategies intended
to minimize the adverse effect of
interest rate risk on future operations
by providing a better match between
the interest rate sensitivity of its
. assets and liabilities. In particular, the
Bank's strategies are intended to
stabilize net interest income for the
long-term by protecting its interest rate
spread against increases in interest
rates. Such strategies include the
origination for portfolio of one-year,
adjustable-rate mortgage (ARM) loans

secured Dby one-to-four family
residential real estate and the
origination of- other types of

adjustable-rate and short-term loans
with greater interest rate sensitivities
than long-term, fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans. The Bank also sells
fixed-rate loans in the secondary
market,

Management does not anticipate that
financial objectives, strategies or
instruments used to reduce its interest
rate exposure will change significantly
in the future. Asset/liability
management in the form of structuring

cash instruments provides greater
flexibility to adjust exposure to interest
rates.

The Company does not purchase
derivative financial instruments or
other financial instruments for trading
purposes. Further, the Company is
not subject to any foreign currency
exchange rate risk, commedity price
risk or equity price risk, The Company,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary
savings bank, is subject to interest
rate risk.

The OTS, the Company’s and Bank’s
primary regulator, provides a net
market value methodology to measure
the interest rate risk exposure of thrift
institutions. This exposure is a
measure of the potential decline in the
net portfolic value (NPV) of the
institution based upon the effect of
assumed incremental 100 basis point
increases or decreases in interest
rates. NPV is the present value of the
expected net cash flows from the
institution’s  financial  instruments
(assets, liahilities and off-balance
sheet contracts). Loans, deposits,
advances and investments are valued
taking into consideration similar
maturities, related discount rates and
applicable prepayment assumptions.

The following NPV table was prepared
by the OTS based upon information
provided by management of the Bank

and sets forth as of September 30,
2005, the estimated changes in fair
value of equity based on the indicated
interest rate environments:

As with any method of measuring
interest rate risk, certain shortcomings
are inherent in the method of analysis
presented in the following table: For
example, although certain assets and
liabilities may have similar maturities
or periods to repricing, they may react
in different degrees to changes in
market interest rates. Also, the
interest rates on certain types of
assets and liabilities may fluctuate in
advance of changes in market interest
rates, while interest rates on other
types - may lag behind changes in
market rates.  Additionally, certain
assets, such as ARM loans, have
features which restrict changes in
interest rates on a short-term basis
and over the life of the asset. Further,
in the event of a change in interest
rates, expected rates of prepayments
on loans and early withdrawals from
certificates could deviate significantly
from those assumed in calculating the
table.

TABLE 6 - NET PORTFOLIO VALUE

At September 30, 2005

Changes Net Portfolio Value (NPV) NPV as % of PV of Assets
{In Basis Points) Basis Point
in Interest Rates $ Amount $ Change % Change NPV Ratio Change
) (Doliars in thousands)
+300 $ 13,376 $ (1,254) (8} % 14.44 % (83)
+200 14,027 (603) (4) 14.84 (33)
+100 14,450 (180) M 15.22 (5)
0 14,630 15.27
-100 14,632 {98) (1 15.08 (19)
-200 14,139 491 3) 1463 (64)
-300 (1) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(1) OTS no longer provides outputs associated with the -300 basis pcints scenarios.

-11 -
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Liquidity and Capital
Resources Asset Quality Regulatory Capital
The Company's principal sources of At September 30, 2005, there were The Bank is required to maintain
funds are cash receipts from no loans on nonaccrual status, no certain minimum capital
customer deposits, loan repossessed assets or propery requirements under oTS

repayments by borrowers, proceeds
from maturing securities, FHLB
advances, and net earnings. The
Bank has an agreement with the
FHLB of Des Moines to provide
cash advances, should the Bank
need additional funds for loan
originations or other purposes.

Commitments to originate loans are
legally binding agreements to lend
to the Bank's customers. Letters of
credit are conditional commitments
issued by the Bank to guarantee
the performance of the borrower to
a third party. At September 30,
2005, commitments, which
generally expire in 180 days or less,
to originate adjustable and fixed-
rate real estate loans for portfolio
were approximately $752,000. This
included five fixed-rate mortgage
loans totaling $454,000 at interest

rates between 5625% and 7.5%

and two consumer loans totaling
$20,000 at interest rates of 6.5%
and 7.75%, with the remainder at
floating market rates. n addition, at
September 30, 2005, loans-in-
process totaled $59 million,
including $4.6 million at interest
rates between 4.5% and 7.25%.
Commitments on  behalf of
borrowers for unused lines of credit,
which have original terms of five
years or less, include home equity
lines of credit totaling $4,012,000
and lines of credit (secured by
commercial real estate and non-real
estate) totaling $1,635,000.
QOutstanding standby letters of
credit amounted to $174,000 at
September 30, 2005.

The Company is building a facility in
north Kansas City, Missouri, that is
anticipated to be completed in the
second quarter of fiscal year 2006.
At September 30, 2005, the
Company had $1.05 million in
commitments with contractors and
for equipment, of which $78,000
had been paid through September
30, 2005.

classified as real estate owned, and
no other nonperforming assets or
assets adversely classified. At
September 30, 2005, the Bank had
two single-family real estate loans
totaling $88,000 and cne unsecured
consumer loan totaling $2,000
designated as special mention.
There were no other loans, which
were not currently classified as
nonaccrual, 90 days past due or
restructured but where known
information about possible credit
problems of borrowers caused
management to have serious
concerns as to the ability of the
borrowers to comply with present
loan repayment terms and would
result in disclosure as nonaccrual,
90 days past due or restructured.

Allowance for Loan Losses

At September 30, 2005, the
allowance for loan losses was
$360,000 compared to $300,000 at
September 30, 2004. There were
no charge-offs or recoveries during
the fiscal year ended September
30, 2005. Management believes
that all known losses in the loan
portfolio that are both probable and
reasonable to estimate have been
recorded as of September 30,
2005. The following is a summary
of activity in the allowance for loan
losses:

regulations. Failure by a savings
institution to meet minimum capital
requirements can result in certain
mandatory and possible
discretionary actions by regulators,
which, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Bank's
financial statements. Under the
capital adequacy guidelines and
regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Bank must
meet specific capital guidelines that
involve guantitative measures of the -
Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance  sheet items as
calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital
amounts and classifications are
also subject to judgments by the
regulators about components, risk-
weightings and other factors.

At September 30, 2005, the Bank
exceeded regulatory capital
requirements with core and risk-
based capital of $11.1 million and
$11.5 million, or 12.0% and 18.4%
of adjusted total assets and risk-
weighted assets, respectively.
These capital requirements
exceeded minimum requirements of
4.0% and 8.0% for adjusted total
assets and risk-weighted assets,
respectively. Under regulatory
guidelines, the Bank  was
considered  well-capitalized  at
September 30, 2005.

Loan charge-offs
Loan recoveries

Balance, end of year

| Balance, beginning of year

Provision charged to expense

For the Year Ended
September 30,
2005 2004
$ 300,000 $ 249,300
- (6,450)
- 2,006
60,000 55,144
$ 360,000 $ 300,000

-12-
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Impact of Inflation

The financial statements and related
data presented herein have been
prepared in accordance  with
accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of
America, which require the
measurement of financial position and
operating results in terms of historical
dollars without considering changes in
the relative purchasing power of
maoney over time due to inflation. The
primary impact of inflation on the
operations of the Company s
reflected in increased operating costs.
Unlike most industrial companies,
virtually all of the assets and liabilities
of a financial institution are monetary
in nature. As a result, interest rates
generally have a2 more significant
impact on a financial institution’s
performance than does inflation.
Interest rates do not necessarily move
in the same direction or to the same
extent as the prices of goods and
services. In the current interest rate
environment, liquidity and the maturity
structure of the Company's assets and
liabilities are  critical to  the
maintenance of acceptable
performance levels.

.13 -
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committee, Board of

Directors and Stockholders
CCSB Financial Corp.
Liberty, Missour:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CCSB Fancial Corp. as of
September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of CCSB Financial Corp. as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted tn the United States of America.

'BKD R

St. Louis, Missouri
October 27, 2005

501 N. Broadway, Suite 600 St. Louis, MO 63102-2102 314 231-5544 Fax 314 231-9731

bkd.com Beyond Your Numbers wocres Rowtand maiss




CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2005 and 2004

ASSETS:

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing depaosits in banks
Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivalents

Available-for-sale securities

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $360,000 and
$300,000 at September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively

Loans held for sale

Premises and equipment, net

Accrued interest receivable

Bank owned life insurance - cash surrender value

Other assets, including prepaid taxes of $28,371 in 2004

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Deposits
Demand
Savings, NOW and money market
Time deposits
Total deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Interest payable and other liabilities
Accrued income taxes '
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commitments and contingencies
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 500,000 shares authorized;
none issued

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 2,500,000 shares authorized,

878,650 shares issued
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost, 61,705 and 11,880 shares at

September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively
Unearned ESCP shares
Unearned RRP shares
Retained earnings - substantially restricted
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2005 2004
$ 2,142,738 $ 2,950,102
130,873 78,566
1,104,000 582,000
3,377,311 3,611,668
13,795,123 18,076,040
805,300 492,100
68,726,456 59,512,972
- 107,000
4,863,844 4,092, 41C
322,536 274,079
2,839,065 2,528,698
365,817 334,482
$ 84,895 452 $ 89,029,449
1
$ 4,830,822 $ 4,337,388
26,837,091 28,422,812
33,367,006 32,574,367
65,034,818 65,334,548
14 377,917 8,205,633
660,600 634,223
861,329 477,426
12,056 -
80,946,820 74,651,830
9,787 9,787
9,219,480 9,180,436
(S00,040) (167,033)
(604,440) (667,805)
(385,113) (502,583)
6,735,817 6,622,865
(126,859) (108,048)
13,948,632 14,377,618
$ 94,895,452 $ 89,029,449




CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
Loans
tnvestment and mortgage-backed securities '
FHLB stock
Other interest-earning assets
TOTAL INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Deposits
Borrowings
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE

NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME:
Charges and other fees on loans
Charges and other fees on deposit accounts
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights
Net gain on sale of loans
Net gain on sale of securities
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance
Other
TOTAL NCNINTEREST INCOME

NONINTEREST EXPENSE:
Compensation and benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Data processing
SAIF deposit insurance premium
Audit, legal and other professional services
Advertising
Correspondent banking charges
Other
TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES
PROVISION (CREDIT) FOR INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME (LOSS)

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2004

2005

3,852,423 $ 3,219,808
478,281 498,210
19,164 8,484
36,550 22,641
4,386,418 3,749,143
1,122,130 848,602
435 537 177,986
1,557,667 1,026,588
2,828,751 2,722,555
60,000 55,144
2,768,751 2,667,411
105,749 114,115
189,651 173,604
(66,313) (96,418)
28,032 16,264

- 12,941
110,367 28,698
16,843 14,169
394,335 263,373
1,794,544 1,752,816
474 667 468,504
191,329 162,658
9,290 10,049
132,598 129,193
65,458 82,310
43 954 45,253
331,023 321,590
3,043,863 2,972,373
119,223 (41,589)
6,271 (28,001)
112,952 $ {13,498)
0.13 $ (0.01)




Balance at September 30, 2003
Net loss

Unrealized loss on securities
available for saie

Income tax benefit

Unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of taxes

Comprehensive loss
Amortization of ESOP
Amortization of RRP
Purchase of Treasury Stock
Balance at September 30, 2004

Net income

Unrealized loss on securities
available for sale

Income tax benefit

Unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of taxes

Comprehensive income {loss)
Armarization of ESOP
Amortization of RRP
Purchase of Treasury Stock
Balance at September 30, 2005

CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

Accumulated

Additional Unearned Unearned Total Other Total
Common Paid-in Treasury ESOP RRP Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
Stock Capital Stock Shares Shares Earnings Income, Net Equity
3 8.787 9,150,476 - (732,665) - 6,636,363 (22,247) 15,041,714
- - - - (13,498) - (13,498)
{130,001) (130,001)
- - - - - 44,200 44,200
. - . - - (85,801} (85,801)
- - - - (13,498) (85,801) (99,299)
- 28,788 - 64,860 - - - 94,648
- - . - 105,431 - - 105,431
- 10,172 (167,033) - (608,014) - - (764,875)
9,787 9,190,436 (167,033) (667,805) (602,583) 6,622,865 (108,048) 14,377,619
- - - - - 112,952 112,952
(28,503) (28,503)
- - - - - 9,692 9,692
) . . - (18,811) (18,811)
B N - - - 112,952 (18,811) 94 141
- 30,885 - §3,365 - - - 94,250
- (1,841) 6,395 - 117,470 - 122,024
- - (739,402) - - - - (739,402)
3 9,787 9,219,480 (900,040} (604,440) {385,113) 6,735,817 (126,859) 13,848,632

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) '
items not requiring (previding) cash:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for loan losses
Amortization of premiums and discounts on securities
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights
Compensation related to incentive plans
Compensation related to ESOP
Deferred income taxes
Deferred loans fees, net .
Net gain on sale of mortgage-backed securities available for sale
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale
Proceeds from the sale of mortgage loans
Net gains on loans sold
Changes in:
Accrued interest receivable
Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance
Other assets
"~ Accrued income taxes
Interest payable and other liabilities
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES;
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sales, maturity or call of available-for-sale securities
Repayment of principal on mortgage-backed securities
Principal collections on available-for-sale securities
Purchase of FHLB stock, net
Net change in loans
Purchase of bank owned life insurance
Purchase of premises and equipment
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-18 -

2005 2004
112,852 (13,498)
225,747 227,369

60,000 55,144
73,496 89,369
66,313 96,418
114,447 105,431
84,250 94 648
(80,903) (80,734)
(64,770) (52,708)
- (12,941)
(1,752,120) (1,226,200)

1,887,152 1,135,464
(28,032) (16,264)
(48,457) 35,633
(110,367) (28,698)
(35,423) (9,748)

40,427 (8,80%)
383,903 55,280
938,615 435,062 -

- (6,111,165)
- 4,048,929

4,134,636 4,711,836

44 281 28,912
(313,200) (146,700)

(9,208,714) (7,519,349)

- (2,500,000)
(997,181) (112,950)
(6,340,178) (7,600,487)
(Continued)



CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

(Continued)
2005 2004
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits $ (299,630) $ 1,109,825
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank fixed-maturity advances 8,250,000 6,822,000
Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank fixed-maturity advances (2,077,7186) (3,757,124)
Proceeds from federal funds purchased 14,938,000 9,186,000
Repayments of federal funds purchased (14,938,000) (8,186,000)
Acquisition of treasury stock (738,402) (764,875)
Net change in incentive plans (RRP} 7,577 -
Net change in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance 26,377 61,646
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,167,206 3,471,472
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {234,357) (3,693,853)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,611,668 7,305,621
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 3,377,311 $ 3,611,668
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 1,553,597 $ 1,018,245
Income tax paid (net of refunds) $ 30,500 3 105,255

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

CCSB Financial Corp. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation incorporated in September 2002, is a financial holding
company whose principal activity is the ownership and management of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Clay County Savings
Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank is primarily engaged in providing a full range of banking and financial services to individual and
corporate customers in the northern part of metropolitan Kansas City, Missouri. The Bank is subject to competition from other
financial institutions. The Bank is subject to the regulation of certain federal and state agencies and undergoes pericdic
examinations by those regulatory authorities.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank. All significant intércompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses. In connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses, management obtains independent appraisals for -
significant properties.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Bank considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

SECURITIES )
Available-for-sale securities, which include any security for which the Bank has no immediate plan to sell but which may be

scld in the future, are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded, net of related income tax effects, in
cther comprehensive income.

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recorded as interest income from securities. Realized gains and
losses are recorded as net security gains (losses). Gains and losses on sales of securities are determined on the specific-
identification method.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale on the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or fair value in the
aggregate.

LOANS

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or untili maturity or payoffs are reported at
their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on
originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest income is reported on the interest
method and includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and costs over the loan term. Generally, loans are placed on non-
accrual status at 90 days past due and interest is considered a loss, unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of
collection.

-20-



CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses
charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan
balance is confirmed. Subsegquent recoverigs, if any, are credited {0 the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic
review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic
conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more
information becomes available.

A loan is considered impaired when, based cn current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable 1o
collect the scheduled payments of principai or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of
collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the
borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of
the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and
construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the
loan's obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciable assets are stated at.cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to expense using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK

Federal Home Loan Bank stock is a required investment for institutions that are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank
system. The required investment in the common stock is based on a predetermined formula.

FORECLOSED ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value at the date of
foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are carried at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in
net income or expense from foreclosed assets.

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

Mortgage servicing rights on originated loans that have been sold are capitalized by allocating the total cost of the mortgage
loans between the mortgage servicing rights and the loans based on their relative fair values. Capitalized servicing rights are
amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated servicing revenues. [Impairment of mortgage servicing rights is
assessed based on the fair value of those rights. Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current
market interest rate. For purposes of measuring impairment, the rights are stratified based on the predominant risk
characteristics of the underlying loans. The predominant characteristics currently used for stratification are type of loan,
interest rate and remaining term to maturity. The amount of impairment is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage
servicing rights for a stratum exceed their fair value.

INCENTIVE PLANS

The Company accounts for its recognition and retention plan (RRP) in accordance with Accounting Principle Board Opinion
(APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. The aggregate purchase price of all shares owned by the incentive
plan is reflected as a reduction of stockholders' equity. Compensation expense is based on the market price of the Company's
stock on the date the shares are granted and is recorded over the vesting period. The difference between the aggregate
purchase price and the fair value on the date granted of the shares earned is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in
capital. ' .
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

EMPLOYEE STOCK QWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company accounts for its employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) in accordance with American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position 93-6. The cost of shares issued to the ESOP but not yet allocated to
participants is presented in the consolidated balance sheet as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. Compensation expense is
recorded based on the market price of the shares as they are committed to be released for allocation to participant accounts.
The difference between the market price and the cost of shares committed to be released is recorded as an adjustment to
additional paid-in capital. Dividends on allocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of retained earnings; dividends on
unallocated ESOP shares are reflected as a reduction of debt.

Shares are considered outstanding for earnings per share calculations when they are committed to be released; unallocated
shares are not considered outstanding.

TREASURY STOCK
Treasury stock is stated at cost. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method.
STOCK OPTIONS

At September 30, 2005, the Bank has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully in Note 12.
The Bank accounts for this plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net
income, as all options granted under this plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock
on the grant date. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and eamings per share if the Bank had applied the
fair value provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee
compensation. '

For the Year Ended
September 30,
2005 2004
Net earnings (loss) $. 112,952 $ (13,498)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported income, net of related tax effects - -
Less. Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for stock
options, net of related tax effects (235,947) (63,845)
Pro forma net earnings (loss) $ (122,995) $ (77.343)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted - as reported $ 0.13 $ {0.01)
Basic and diluted - pro foerma $ (0.14) 3 (0.09)

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not
that a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share have been computed based upcn the weighted-average common shares outstanding during each year.

Unearned ESCP shares and unallocated incentive shares have been excluded from the computation of average shares
outstanding. /
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS SUMMARIZE THE IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (Statement 123R}), which addresses the accounting for employee stock
options. Statement 123R requires that the cost of all employee stock options, as well as cther equity-based compensation
arrangements, be reflected in the financial statements based on the estimated fair value of the awards. On April 14, 2005, the
SEC amended the compliance date for Statement 123R. The new rules make Statement 123R effective at the beginning of
the fiscal year that begins after December 15, 2005, for public entities that file as small business issuers. The Company does
not anticipate adopting Statement 123R until as required by the SEC, which would not make Statement 123R effective until
October 1, 2006.

On August 17, 2005, the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the Company approved an
amendment to the terms of unvested options to purchase approximately 73,200 shares of common stock granted under the
Company's 2004 Stock Option Plan. The amendment accelerates the ability to exercise such options. Under the revised
vesting schedule, for each individual awarded stock options, all non-qualified options will become vested on December 1,
2005, and incentive options to purchase up to 6,269 shares of common stock will become vested each year beginning on
December 1, 2005, until such time as all incentive options have vested. The revised vesting schedule caps the amount of
incentive stock options to be vested in any given year to the amount permitted under the rules of the Interna! Revenue Service.
Previously, the options were scheduled to vest equally over a five-year period beginning December 1, 2004. Based on the
new vesting schedule, 51% (covering 47,036 shares) of all options awarded will vest on December 1, 2005, 17% (covering
16,000 shares) will vest on December 1, 2008, 10% (covering 2,411 shares} will vest cn December 1, 2007, and 1% (covering
753 shares) will vest on December 1, 2008.

NOTE 2: SECURITIES

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of available-for-sale securities are as follows:

September 30, 2005

Gross Gross Approximate

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government Agencies $ 2,997,921 $ - $ (52,738) $ 2,845183
SBA-backed securities 112,415 - (1,761) 110,654
Mortgage-backed securities g 876,898 19,555 (134,128) 9,762,425
Equity securities 1,000,000 - (23,139) 976,861
$ 13,087,334 $ 19,555 $ (211,766) $ 13,795,123

September 30, 2004

Gross Gross Approximate

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Government Agencies $ 2,997,288 $ 2,712 3 (9,550) $ 2,990,450
SBA-backed securities 157,028 - (1,699) 155,330
Mortgage-backed securities . 14,085,431 40,821 (184,925) 13,841,327
Equity securities 1,000,000 - (11,067) 988,333
$ 18,239,748 $ 43,533 $  (207,241) $ 18,076,040
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities at September 30, 2005, by contractual maturity, are shown
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Available-for-Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
U.S. Government Agencies: ‘

Within one year $ 500,000 $ 495737
One to five years 2,497,921 2,449 446
2,997,921 2,945,183
Mortgage-backed securities 8,876,998 9,762,425
SBA-backed securities 112,415 110,654
Equity securities 1,000,000 976,861

$ 13,987,334 $ 13,795,123

The carrying value of securities pledged as collateral, to secure public deposits and for other purposes, was $2,298,000 at
September 30, 20053, and $2,710,000 at September 30, 2004. The fair value of securities pledged as collateral, o secure
public deposits and for other purposes, was $2,260,000 at September 30, 2005, and $2,583,000 at September 30, 2004,

No sales of available-for-sale securities occurred in 2005, Gross gains of $12,941 resulting from the sale of mortgage-backed
securities were realized in 2004.

Certain investments in debt {and marketable equity) securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less than
their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at September 30, 2005, was $12,582,908, which is approximately
91% of the Company’s available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investment portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from
recent increases in market interest rates. Based on evaluation of available evidence, inciuding recent changes in market
interest rates and credit rating information obtained from regulatory filings, management believes the declines in fair value for
these securities are temporary. Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary, the cost basis
of the investment will be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the cther-than-temporary
impairment is identified. The following table shows the investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of:

September 30, 2005

Less than 12 Months " 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses - Value Losses
U.S. Government Agencies $ 1062176 $ (35745 $ 983,008 $ (16,983) $ 2845184 § (52,738)
SBA-backed securities - - 110,654 (1,761) 110,654 (1,761)
Mortgage-backed securities 2,455,754 (13,579) 6,094,455 (120,149) 8,550,209 (134,128)
Equity securities - - 976,861 - (23,139) 976,861 (23,139)
Total temporarily-impaired i
securities $ 4417930 § (49724) $ 8,164,978 § (162,042) $ 12,582,908 $ (211,766)
September 30, 2004
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government Agencies $ 890450 $ (9,550) 5 - $ - 3 980,450 $  (9,550)
SBA-backed securities - - 155,330 (1,699) 155,330 (1,699)
Mortgage-backed securities 3,824,542 (38,167) 7,788,680 (146,759) 11,613,222 (184,926)
Equity securities - - 988,934 (11,066) 988,834 (11,068)
Total temporarily-impaired
securities $ 4814902 $ (47.717) $ 8932944 § (159,524) $ 13,747,936 § (207,241)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004
NOTE 3: LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Categories of loans at September 30, include:

2005 2004
Real estate loans:
Single-family, 1-4 units $ 32,812,930 $ 34,445,854
Muiti-family, 5 or more units 2,166,511 1,113,181
Construction, land & land development 22,273,084 12,377,462
Commercial 9,779,783 7.971077
Consumer loans 6,512,477 6,483,545
Commercial non-real estate loans 1,302,618 1,426,224
Loans secured by deposits 271,416 197,734
75,118,829 ) 64,015,077
Allowance for losses (360,000) (300,000)
t.oans in process (5,906,636) (4,138,292)
Deferred loan fees, net (125,737) (63,813)

3 68,726,456 3 58,512,972

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows.;

2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year $ 300,000 $ 249,300
Loan charge-cffs - (6,450)
Loan recoveries - 2,006
Provision charged to expense 60,000 55,144
Balance, end of year 3 360,000 $ 300,000

The Company had no loans considered impaired as of September 30, 2005. Impaired loans totaled $106,010 at September
30, 2004. An allowance for loan losses of $11,203 relates to all impaired loans at September 30, 2004. interest income of
$4,557 was recognized on a cash basis on these loans for the year ended September 30, 2004. Gross interest income would
have been $8,065 on these loans for the year ended September 30, 2004, if the interest payments had been received in
accordance with the original terms. The average balance of impaired loans for 2005 and 2004 were $19,470 and $35,788,
respectively.

NOTE 4: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Maijor classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, are as follows:

2005 2004
Land $ 1,410,850 $ . 685,257
Buildings and improvements 3,928,780 3,743,397
Equipment 725,833 884,870
Automobiles 66,146 65,766
6,131,609 5,389,290
Less accumulated depreciation 1,267,765 1,296,880

$ 4,863,844 3 4,092,410

The Company is building a facility in north Kansas City, Missouri. At September 30, 2005, the Company had $1,049,414 in
commitments with contractors and for equipment, of which $77,730 had been paid through September 30, 2005.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

NOTE 5: LOAN SERVICING

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The unpaid principal
balances of mortgage loans serviced for others were $22,685,723 and $24,593,513 at September 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing toan servicing, and included in demand deposits, were
$444,048 and $420,003 at September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights at September 30, 2005 and 2004, totaled $50,353 and
$98,074 respectively. Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For
purposes of measuring impairment, risk characteristics, including type of lcan, interest rate and remaining term to maturity,
were used to stratify the originated servicing rights.

Activity in mortgage servicing rights were as follows:

2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year $ 98,074 $ 183,300
Servicing rights capitalized 18,591 11,192
Amortization of servicing rights (66,312) (96,418)

Balance, end of year $ 50,353 $ 98,074

NOTE 6: INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Interest-bearing deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more were $12,011,137 and $13,744,723 at September 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively. '

At September 30, 2005, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

October 1, 2005 to September 30, 2006 - $ 21,629,401
October 1, 2006 to September 30, 2007 5,802,099
October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2008 1,747,792
October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2009 ’ 2,127,827
October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2010 2,059,886

$ 33,367,005

NOTE 7: FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

Federal Home Loan Bank advances are summarized as follows, as ofSeptember 30, 2005, based on final maturity date:

October 1, 2005 to September 30, 2006 $ 2,500,000
October 1, 2006 to September 30, 2007 3,500,000
October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2008 3,500,000
October 1, 2008 to September 30, 2008 2,322,000
October 1, 2009 to September 30, 2010 1,250,000
Thereafter 1,305,817

3 14,377,917

The Federa! Home Loan Bank advances, bearing a weighted average interest rate of 3.53%, are secured by singie-family
loans of $17,253,500 (120% of the amount of total indebtedness) and FHLB stock.
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NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes includes these components:

2005 2004
Taxes currently payable $ 87,174 $ 62,643
Deferred income taxes (80,903) (90,734)
Income tax expense $ 6,271 3 (28,081)

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s actual income tax expense is shown below:

2005 2004
Computed at the statutory rate o $ 40,536 3 (14,140)
Increase (decrease) resuting from:
Tax-exempt income , (37,525) (9,757)
Other 3,260 {4,194)
Actual tax expense 3 6,271 3 {28,081)

The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the balance sheets were:

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses 5 128000 § 111,000
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 65,352 55,661
Recognition and retention plan (37,000} 39,008
Other 133,000 34,289
Total deferred tax assets ‘ 289 352 238,959
Deferred tax liabilities:
FHLB stock dividends 83,000 83,226
Mortgage-servicing rights : 18,000 36,287
Tax bad debt reserves arising after September 30, 1988 - 23,954
Other’ 17,000 16,734
Total deferred tax liabilities 118,000 160,201
Net deferred tax asset 3 170,352 $ 79,758

NOTES9: STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND REGULATCRY MATTERS

On January 8, 2003 the Bank converted from mutual to stock form and changed its name to Clay County Savings Bank. The
Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary of 2 newly formed Delaware holding company, CCSB Financial Ccrp. The Company
issued 978,650 shares of common stock at $1C per share in conjunction with the offering. Net proceeds from the sale of
common stock in the offering were $8,362,981, after deduction of conversion costs of $640,599, and unearned compensation
related to shares issued to'the ESOP. The Company retained 50% of the net conversion proceeds less funds used to
originate a loan to the Bank's ESOP for the purchase of shares of common stock, and used the balance of the net proceeds to
purchase all of the stock of the Bank in the conversicn.
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Deposit account holders and borrowers do not have voting rights in the Bank. Voting rights were vested exclusively with
stockholders of the holding company. Deposit account holders continue to be insured by the SAIF. A liquidation account was
established at the time of conversion in an amount equal 10 the capital of the Bank as of the date of the latest balance sheet
contained in the final prospectus. Each eligible account holder or supplemental account holder is entitled to a proportionate
share of this account in the event of a complete liquidation of the Bank, and only in such event. This share will be reduced if
the account holder's or supplemental account holder’s deposit balance falls below the amount on the date of record and will
cease to exist if the account is closed. The liquidation account will never be increased despite any increase in the related
deposit balance.

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines
and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
- quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory .
accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantjtative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios (set forth in the table that follows). Management believes, as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, that the Bank meets
all capital adequacy requirements o which it is subject.

As of September 30, 2005, the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as well capitalized
under the framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum
total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since
that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.
. Minimum Required

for Capital to be "Well
Actual Adequacy Capitalized”
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

{Dollars in Thousands)
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2005:

Total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets $ 11,404 18.4% 3 4,994 80% % 6,243 10.0%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets $ 11,149 17.9% $ 2,497 40% % 3,746 6.0%

Tier 1 capital to total assets $ 11,149 12.0% $ 3,715 4.0% $ 4,643 5.0%
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2004:

Total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets $ 11,067 20.8% $ 4254 B.0% $ 5,317 10.0%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets $ 10,767 20.2% $ 2127 4.0% $ 3,190 6.0%

Tier 1 capital to total assets $ 10,767 12.2% $ 3,529 40% $ 4411 5.0%

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends on its common stock to the Combany is restricted to maintaining adequate capital as
shown in the above table. At September 30, 2005, approximately $377,000 of the Bank’s retained earnings were available for
dividend declaration without prior regulatory approval.

NOTE 10: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At September 30, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had loans cutstanding to executive officers, directors, significant shareholders and
their associates (related parties), in the amount of $377,079 and $200,861, respectively. In management’s opinion, such loans
and other extensions of credit and deposits were made in the ordinary course of business and were made on substantially the
same terms (including interest and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons.
Further, in management's opinion, these loans did not involve more than normal risk of coliectibility or present other
unfavorable features. Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at September 30, 2005 and 2004, totaled $1,310,596
and $1,235,180, respectively.
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NOTE 11: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Bank has a defined contribution pension plan, which covers substantially all employees. Effective November 1, 2002,
participants can contribute up to 75% of their salary, subject to certain restrictions imposed by Internal Revenue Code, which
the Bank will match 53% of the employee contribution, up to a maximum employee contribution of 6% of salary. Pension plan
expense was $31,885 and $31,437 for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As part of the conversion to stock in 2003, the Company established an ESOP covering substantially all employees of the
Company. The ESOP acguired 78,292 shares of Company common stcck at $10 per share in the conversion with funds
provided by a loan from the Company. Accordingly, $782,820 of common stock acquired by the ESOP was shown as a
reduction of stockholders’ equity. Shares are released to participants proportionately as the loan is repaid. Dividends on
allocated shares are recorded as dividends and charged to retained earnings. Dividends on unallocated shares are used to
repay the loan and are treated as compensation expense. Compensation expense is recorded equal to the fair market value
of the stock when contributions, which are determined annually, at December 31, by the Board of Directors of the Company,
are made to the ESOP.

2005 2004
Allocated shares 13,137 6,635
Shares ratably released for allocation 4,711 4877
Unallocated shares 60.444 66,780
Total ESOP shares 78,292 78,292
Fair value of unreleased shares 3 881549 % ,

The Company acdopted with stockholders’ approval the Recognition and Retention Plan (the “RRP”) on January 15, 2004,
The RRP provides for the granting of shares of common stock to the eligible directors, officers and employees. The RRP was
approved for 39,146 shares of common stock of the Company. Not all of the shares have been awarded. As of September
30, 2005, the RRP has granted 38,295 shares to existing directors, officers and employees with 851 shares available for future
grants. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, 650 shares were awarded to employees who previously had not
received awards and 475 shares have been forfeited by employees no longer with the Company. The awards vest at the rate
of 20% per year over a five-year period beginning December 1, 2004, with the exception of awards of less than 100 shares.
Awards of less than 100 shares become 100% vested on December 1, 2004. On December 1, 2004, 8,179 shares were
vested.

The vesting of the granted shares can be accelerated based on certain ptan provisions. Directors, officers, and employees
granted shares retain voting rights and, if dividends are paid, dividends during the vesting period. The RRP will continue in
effect for 10 years unless otherwise terminated. The Company’s stock price was $15.95 on the RRP approval date. Expense
recognized under the RRP totaled $125,047 and $105,431 for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 12: STOCK CPTION PLAN

On January 15, 2004, the Company's stockholders voted to approve a Stock Option Plan, providing for the awards in the form
of stock options, reload options, dividend equivalent rights and/or limited stock appreciation rights to officers and employees of
the Company and the Bank. The Stock Cpticn Plan authorizes the granting of options to purchase up to 97,865 shares of
commen stock. On January 21, 2004, the Company awarded 92,500 shares under the Stock Option Plan to directors, officers
and émployees. Under the terms of the initial awards, the awards vest at the rate of 20% per year over a five-year period
beginning December 1, 2004, and the maximum term is 10 years. All such options were granted with an exercise price of
$15.95 per share, the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of the grant.

Qn August 17, 2005, the Compensation Committee (the "Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the Company approved an
amendment to the terms of unvested options to purchase approximately 73,200 shares of common stock granted under the
Company's 2004 Stock Option Plan. The amendment accelerates the ability to exercise such options. Under the revised
vesting schedule, for each individual awarded stock options, all non-qualified options will become vestéd on December 1,
2005, and incentive options ta purchase up to 6,269 shares of common stock will become vested each year beginning on
December 1, 2005, until such time as all incentive options have vested. The revised vesting schedule caps the amount of
incentive stock options to be vested in any given year to the amount permitted under the rutes of the Internal Revenue Service.
Based on the new vesting schedule, 51% (covering 47,036 shares) of all options awarded will vest on December 1, 2005, 17%
(covering 16,000 shares) will vest on December 1, 2006, 10% (covering 8,411 shares) will vest on December 1, 2007, and 1%
(covering 753 shares) will vest on December 1, 2008.
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At September 30, 2005 and 2004, there were outstanding options to purchase 91,700 and 92,500 shares of common stock,
respectively. All opticns have an exercise term of 10 years from the date of grant, which is January 10, 2014. Options to
purchase 8C0 shares, which have not yet been vested under the Stock Option Plan, were forfeited during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005. As of September 30, 2005, options to purchase 18,500 shares were available to be exercised and no
options have expired. As of September 30, 2004, there no options available to be exercised and no options had expired. The
fair value of options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following weighted-
average assumptions:

Dividend yields - %
Volatility factors of expected market

price of commcn stock ’ 15.54
Risk-free interest rates 4.14
Expected life of options 7.14 years

Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year $ 4.85

NOTE 13: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share are based upon the weighted-average shares outstanding. Options to purchase 91,700
and 92,500 shares of common stock at $15.95 were outstanding at September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, but were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of
the common shares. Earnings per share were computed as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2005

Weighted-
Average Per Share
Income Shares . Amount
Net Income $ 112,852 885,623
Basic earnings per share .
Income available to common stockholders $ 0.13
Diluted earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders
and assumed conversicns 3 112,852 885,623 $ . 0.13

Year Ended September 30, 2004

Weighted-
Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Net Income 3 (13,498) 904,501
Basic earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders 3 (0.01)
Diluted earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders
and assumed conversions $ {13,498) 804,501 $ {001
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NOTE 14: DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents estimated fair value of the Company's financial instruments. The fair values of certain of these
instruments were calculated by discounting expected cash flows, which involves significant judgments by management and
uncertainties. Fair value is the estimated amount at which financial assets or liabilities could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Because no market exists for certain of these
financial instruments and because management does not intend to sell these financial instruments, the Company does not
know whether the fair values shown below represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold
individually or in the aggregate.

2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3377311 $ 3,377,311 $ 3611668 § 3,611,668
Available-for-sale securities 13,795,123 13,795,123 18,076,040 18,076,040
FHLB stock 805,300 805,300 492 100 492 100
L oans receivable, net of allowance €8,726,456 68,116,000 58,512,972 60,234,129
for loan losses
Loans held for sale - - - 107,000 110,916
Bank cwned life insurance 2,639,065 2,639,065 2,528,698 2,528,588
Interest receivable 322,536 322,536 274,079 274,079
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits $ 65,034,918 § 64,724,000 $ 65,334,548 $ 62,877,963
FHLB advances 14,377,917 14,118,083 8,205,633 8,123,053
Interest payable 12,660 12,660 8,590 8,590
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance 660,600 660,600 634,223 634,223

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FHLB STOCK AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE - The carrying amount approximates fair
value.

SECURITIES - Fair values equal quoted market prices, if available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair value is
estimated based on quoted market prices of similar securities. ‘

LOANS - The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made i{c borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. Loans with similar
characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the calculations. The carrying amount of accrued interest approximates its
fair value.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE - For homogeneous categories of loans, such as mortgage loans held for sale, fair value is
estimated using the quoted market prices for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan
characteristics.

BANK OWNED .LIFE INSURANCE - Fair value of bank owned life insurance is equal to the cash surrender value of the
underlying life insurance policies.

DEPOSITS - The fair value is estimated by using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for
deposits of similar characteristics and remaining maturities. The carrying amcunt of interest payable approximates its fair
value.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES - Rates currently available to the Bank for debt with similar terms and remaining
maturities are used to estimate the fair value of existing debt.

INTEREST PAYABLE AND ADVANCES FROM BORROWERS FOR TAXES AND INSURANCE - The carrying amount
approximates fair value.
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NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CREDIT RISK

LETTERS OF CREDIT - in the normal course of business, the Bank issues various financia! standby, performance standby
and commercial lefters of credit for its customers. As consideration for the letters of credit, the institution charges letter of
credit fees based on the face amount of the letters and creditworthiness of the counterparties. These letters of credit are
stand-alone agreements, and are unrelated to any obligation the depositor has to the Bank.

Standby letters of credit are irrevocable conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Financial standby letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercia! paper, bond financing and simitar transactions. Performance standby letters of credit are
issued to guarantee performance of certain customers under non-financial contractual obligations. The credit risk involved in
issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as the risk that is involved in extending loans to customers.

The Bank had total outstanding standby letters of credit amounting to $173,625 and $23,625 at September 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

LINES OF CREDIT - Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates. Since a portion of the line may expire without
being drawn upon, the total unused lines do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s
creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory,
property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and residential real estate. Management uses the same credit policies
in granting lines of credit as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

At September 30, 2005, unused lines of credit aggregated $5,647,000, consisting of $4,012,000 in home equity lines of credit
and $1,635,000 in commercial lines of credit. At September 30, 2004, the Bank’s unused lines of credit aggregated
$5,559,000, of which approximately $3,821,000 were home equity lines of credit and $1,738,000 were commercial lines of
credit.

COMMITMENTS - Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since a portion of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customers creditworthiness is evaluated
on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral cobtained, if deemed necessary, is based 6n managements credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and
equipment, commercial real estate and residential real estate.

At September 30, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had outstanding commitments to originate loans aggregating approximately
$752,000 and $280,000, respectively. The commitments extended over varying periods of time with the majority being
disbursed within a one-year period. Loan commitments at fixed rates of interest amounted to $474,000 and $61,000 at
September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, with the remainder at floating market rates. In addition, at September 30, 2005,
loans in process totaled $5.9 million including $4.6 'miflion with fixed rates between 4.50% and 7.25% and $1.3 million with
adjustable rates. At September 30, 2004, loans in process totaled $4.1 million at interest rates between 4.50% and 7.75%.

Mortgage loans in the process of origination represent amounts that the Bank plans to fund within 2 normal period of 60 to 90
days, and which are intended for sale to investors in the secondary market. The Bank had no mortgage loans in the process
of origination at either September 30, 2005, or September 30, 2004. The Bank had no mortgage loans held for sale at
September 30, 2005, and $107,000 at September 30, 2004.

» CCSB Financial Corp.
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NOTE 16: CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Presented below is condensed financial information as to financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
ASSETS:
Noninterest-bearing deposit in subsidiary bank $ 163,523 $ 110,454
Interest-bearing deposits in banks, including subsidiary bank 517,479 2,008,045
Total cash and cash equivalents ' 681,002 2,119,499
Loan participations with subsidiary bank 1,565,694 877,056
ESOP loan receivable 678,531 730,725
Investment in subsidiary bank : 11,021,883 10,659,038
Other assets 35,842 13,992
TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,883,052 $ 14,400,310
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Total liabilities 3 34,420 3 22,691
Stockholders' equity . 13,948,632 14,377,619
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 13,883,052 $ 14,400,310

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
Interest income $ 156,673 $ 105,443
Provision for loan losses . (15,000) -
Noninterest expense : . (221,113) (198,649)
Income taxes 27,009 31,691
Net loss before equity in undistributed
earnings of the subsidiary bank (52,431) (61,515)
Equity in undistributed eamnings of the subsidiary bank 165,383 . 48,017
Net income (loss) $ ° 112,952 $  (13,498)
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss) $

Items not requiring (providing) cash:
Equity in undistributed earnings of the subsidiary bank
Provision for loan losses
Other

Net cash used for operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in loans
Principal collected on ESOP loan

Net cash used for investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of treasury stock

Net cash used for financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 3

2005 2004
112,952 $  (13,498)
(165,383) (48,017)
15,000 -
{(10,220) (14,806)
(47.651) (76,321)
(703,638) (877,058)

52,194 52195
(651,444) (824,861)
(739,402) (764,875)
(739,402) (764,875)

(1,438,497) (1,666,057)

2,119,499 3,785,556
681,002 $ 2,119,499
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STOCKHOLDER AND INVESTOR INFORMATION

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held Thursday,
February 2, 2006, at 10:00 a.m., at the main office of
CCSB Financial Corp. and Clay County Savings Bank
focated at 1178 West Kansas, Liberty, Missouri.

Stock Trading Information

Symbol: CCFC

Annual Report on Form 10-KSB

Copies of the Form 10-KSB for CCSB Financial Corp. are
available without charge upon written request to:

CCSB Financial Corp.

Attention: Debarah A. Jones, Secretary
1178 West Kansas

Liberty, Missouri 64068

Copies are also available via the Internet at
www.claycountysavings.com

Transfer Agent
Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016
1-800-368-5948 (Investor Relations)
Special Legal Counsel
Luse Gorman Pomerenk & Schick, P.C.

5335 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W., Suite 400
Washington, D.C. 20015

Independent Certified Public Accountants
BKD, LLP

501 N. Broadway, Suite 800
St. Louis, Missouri 63102

CCSB FINANCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARY DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

CCSB FINANCIAL CORP.

Directors

John R. Davis, Chairman of the Board, Presfdent and Chief
Executive Officer of Company

John R. Cooper, Retired

George A. McKinley, Owner — Al McKinley, Inc.

Keith A. Oberkrom, Underwriter-First American Title Company
Mario Usera, Executive Vice President of Company

Witliam J. Turpin, Aftorney — Wherritt and Turpin

Robert A. Whipple, Retired

CLAY COUNTY SAVINGS BANK

Directors

John R. Cooper, Chafirman of the Board
William J. Turpin, Vice Chairman

John R. Davis

George A. McKinley

Keith A. Oberkrom

Maric Usera

Robert A. Whipple
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Officers
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